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Summary of Questions and Answers 
RFQ #829 – OECE Child Enrollment & Payment Data Systems Management 

Pre-Proposal Conference on December 14, 2018 @ 2:00pm 
Written Questions on or before December 18, 2018 @ 5:00pm 

 
 
Pre-proposal Conference Human Services Agency Representatives: 
Sandra Naughton – HSA OECE Manager  Sandra.Naughton@sfgov.org 
Elizabeth Leone – HSA Senior Contracts Manager Elizabeth.Leone@sfgov.org 
  
     
 
Questions and Answers:  
 

1. Question:  The changes do not seem significant on this re-issue of RFQ 819. Why the 
withdrawal of RFQ 819 and re-issue the RFQ? 
Answer:  The main issue is the change in the security and privacy as a minimum 
requirement. This was impossible to evaluate. Therefore, we took this out of the 
minimum qualifications. We also wanted the secondary process to be a bit more robust so 
that it was clearer on how proposers would be evaluated. We wanted to make the process 
cleaner, fairer, and more transparent. 
 

2. Question:  Is the budget to cover three full years? 
Answer:  The tentative term will be from May 1, 2019 until June 30, 2021. 
 

3. Question:  Are the audited financial statements required for submission? 
Answer:  If you are not required to have an audit due to your organization’s size and 
capacity, please note that in your proposal. 
 

4. Question:  OECE Representatives comprise 40% of the evaluation. What is the list of 
questions that they will ask? 
Answer:  There are 16 questions that the OECE Representatives will ask. These 
questions are listed on pages 28-29 in the RFQ. 
 

5. Question:  How many OECE children are currently served? 
Answer:  Approximately 8,000 children are receiving public assistance through OECE. 
 

6. Question:  The security and privacy certificates and verification become due upon award 
of contract but not due during the submission process? 
Answer:  Correct. Specifics related to security and privacy will be negotiated at the time 
of contract negotiation. 
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7. Question:  In the Scope of Work 4.1, would the 10 month extractions be on demand 
reports or via an automatic process? 
Answer:  On demand. We would work with you to gather the business requirements and 
discuss the details on what is expected upon award of the contract. It does not have to be 
an automatic system. 
 

8. Question:  Under Scope of work 4.2 regarding the monthly snapshot of data - is this 
request for a raw copy of all data or just specific data sets? 
Answer:  It will most likely be specific data sets. We are in the early stages of setting up 
data warehousing and at this time we do not know exactly what we will be looking for. 
 

9. Question:  In Appendix B, those are for reference and templates and not for submission? 
Answer:  Those are for reference for the type of terms we need to see. The actual 
agreement terms would be finalized during contract negotiation. 
 

10. Question:  In Appendix B, template P 648-P in Appendix D lists service levels and audit 
of service levels. Can you clarify? 
Answer:  Appendix B includes various templates the City uses for IT contracts. Template 
P648-P is one template. Its Appendix D outlines Service Level Obligations as an example 
of the type of obligations that may be negotiated during contracting. The Appendix 
defines the service levels, reporting, and impact of failure of the contractor to meet the 
service level obligations. The Appendix also states that no more than quarterly, the City 
shall have the right to audit Contractor’s books, records, and measurement and auditing 
tools to verify service level obligations achievement. 
 

11. Question:  How many vendors will be selected for the secondary process? 
Answer:  Up to five vendors will be selected for the secondary process.  They would all 
be presented on the same day; therefore, the whole day would need to be blocked off for 
the presentation. 
 

12. Question:  The migration of data from existing systems, is that a known capability?  
Answer:  Part of the work is to export data from the current systems. OECE will 
facilitate and seek cooperation from our current vendors and partners. 
 

13. Question:   Is the ability of data to be entered by families a required feature? 
Answer:  This is a desired feature (g) under Desired Features for System which starts on 
page 17. 
 

14. Question:  Is it a required feature that families are able to entered attendance themselves? 
Answer:  On page 12 of the RFQ under Attendance Information, one of the required 
features is using an electronic signature system for daily sign-in. 
 

15. Question:  Can the pricing of integration with other systems be provided? 
Answer:  Not at this point. If you can provide some detail, estimates, parameters or 
pricing structure for this kind of work in your proposal that would be helpful. 
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16. Question:  What is the budget for this project? 
Answer:  We ask that the proposal outline the projected costs such as recurring costs and 
one-time costs. With this RFQ, we are not providing minimum or maximum budget 
amounts. 
 

17. Question:  Are the OECE registry users expected to edit the data or just import the data 
from the registry? 
Answer:  The goal is to have the individual ECE professionals maintain the integrity of 
the data registry, so ideally we would not want OECE to edit the data, although it is a 
possibility. 
 

18. Question:  On page 26 of the RFQ, there is a note stating: Respondents submitting 
proposals that have previously been contracted by the City and County of San Francisco 
to provide goods and/or services must successfully demonstrate compliance with 
performance/monitoring requirements specified in previous grants/contracts (corrective 
actions) in order to be considered responsive to this RFQ. What type of documents we 
should include to meet this requirement? 
Answer:  You do not need to include any specific documents. If your organization is 
subject to annual and/or periodic programmatic, fiscal, or contract monitoring, you may 
be required (upon request) to show that you are in compliance with City and County 
regulations as of the most recent monitoring. 
 

19. Question: Is there a single source of funding for the Providers/Agencies that are enrolled 
with OECE? 

 Answer: No, OECE uses multiple local funding sources and aims to leverage federal and 
state funding in its Early Learning Scholarship funding model. 
 

20. Question: Can an agency enroll in different programs sponsored/funded by OECE like 
Pre-k, Summer Transition Program, etc.? If yes, how many such programs are currently 
funded by OECE? 

 Answer: Yes, programs can receive up tp 7 types of funding from OECE and from state 
and/or federal agencies. For a description of the funding sources please refer to pages 9 
through 12 and page 42 in the Early Learning Scholarship/Preschool for All Operating 
Guidelines available here: http://sfoece.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/ELS-PFA-
Operating-Guidelines-English_FINAL070118.pdf. 

 
21. Question: Does OECE want a single ‘Child Enrollment & Payment Data Systems 

Management’ that would cater to the needs of all the programs such as Pre-K, Summer 
Transition, etc.? 

 Answer: OECE is hoping to reduce administrative burden on ECE programs and system 
partners by integrating child enrollment and payment information into a single data 
system, if possible. 

 
22. Question: For multilingual support, would you need the entire application/system to be 

displayed in Spanish and Mandarin? 
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 Answer: As stated on page 17 under Desired Features, section b), “The interface pages 
used by ECE programs are available in English, Spanish and traditional Chinese.” Also 
as stated on page, section g, if the system has functions that allow families of enrolled 
children to view information related to their child(ren)’s enrollment, “The family portals 
would be available in English, Spanish and traditional Chinese.” 

 
23. Question: Can we use the budget form provided with the withdrawn RFQ# 819, or do we 

have to use our own forms? 
 Answer: You can use either HSA budget forms or your own that show salaries, 

operating, and other expenses for your proposal. 


